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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The Committee on

          3  Health is now in session. Good morning, and welcome

          4  to today's oversight hearing. I am Council Member

          5  Victor Robles, and I am privileges to preside over

          6  the Council's Committee on Health.

          7                 This morning's oversight hearing is

          8  on Intro. 447, introduced by the Speaker of the

          9  Council, Peter Vallone, and also we have before us

         10  Intro. No. 448, introduced by Council Member

         11  Ognibene, the Minority Leader of the Council.

         12                 Both Intro. 447 and 448 would require

         13  the placement of automatic, external defibrillators

         14  at certain public places.

         15                 Intro. 447 also provides that these

         16  devices be placed on Police and Fire Department

         17  emergency vehicles.

         18                 In addition, Intro. 447 requires the

         19  training in the use of automatic external

         20  defibrillators be provided to the public.

         21                 According to the American Heart

         22  Association, it is estimated that over 58 million

         23  Americans have one or more types of heart diseases.

         24  Sudden cardiac arrest is a major cause of death in

         25  the United States, claiming an estimate of 250,000
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          2  lives each year.

          3                 During a heart attack, time is of

          4  essence. Prompt delivery of an electrical shock to

          5  restore a normal heart rhythm is extremely critical.

          6                 These automatic external

          7  defibrillators, or AED's, are portable, small

          8  devices and simple to use. During emergencies they

          9  can be the difference between life and death.

         10                 The Administration was invited to

         11  testify, but declined due to the short notice in

         12  which this hearing was convened. Since this is only

         13  the first hearing, we expect them to testify at a

         14  future date.

         15                 My colleagues will be joining us, and

         16  as they do I will introduce them. I am a believer in

         17  starting on time, although I broke my normal

         18  requirement and I started on time, but I guess it is

         19  Monday morning so I was trying to give a little

         20  leeway. I will call upon my counsel of the

         21  Committee, Jose Orgeno, to begin to call those who

         22  have registered and of course those who will be

         23  testifying and to do that I will call on Jose

         24  Orengo.

         25                 MR. ORGENGO: Dr. Weisfeldt, from the
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          2  American Heart Association.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What I would like

          4  for you to do is push the button, and let me just

          5  say, for anyone else who is going to testify, I need

          6  you, even though we call your name, to once again

          7  introduce yourself, and who you represent, simply

          8  because we do not have the old way of doing things

          9  with the human stenographer, now everything is

         10  technology, so I need you to speak into the mic so

         11  we can record whatever you have said.

         12                 Let me just say we have been joined

         13  by my colleague from Queens, Council Member Julia

         14  Harrison. Good morning.

         15                 Doctor.

         16                 DR. WEISFELDT: Councilman, I am Dr.

         17  Myron Weisfeldt.  I was President of the American

         18  Heart Association in 1989. I was responsible for the

         19  program in developing an approach to public access

         20  defibrillation between 1993 and 1997, and my job

         21  currently is as Chair of the Department of Medicine

         22  at Columbia University. I am speaking in behalf of

         23  the Heart Association.

         24                 The American Heart Association

         25  appreciates very much this opportunity to comment on
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          2  the historic proposed legislation to make automatic

          3  external defibrillators available in public places

          4  in New York City. If this legislation is approved by

          5  the Council, New York City will be the first City in

          6  the nation to have a broadbased program of automatic

          7  defibrillation in public places, but by far not the

          8  first program to show the success of this approach

          9  of implementing defibrillation in public places.

         10                 Without warning, while enjoying a

         11  round of golf, watching a movie, a baseball game,

         12  just walking down the street, a man or woman may

         13  collapse from sudden cardiac death. Sudden cardiac

         14  death is a major cause of death in the United

         15  States. As the Chairman said, it claims 250,000

         16  lives per year in the country overall, and that

         17  equates to approximately 700 deaths per day overall

         18  in the country.

         19                 In New York City we would estimate

         20  that there are 20 episodes of sudden cardiac death

         21  every day, that is five times the number of deaths

         22  that occur from automobile accidents.

         23                 Ninety-five percent of individuals

         24  who suffer cardia arrest over the country do not

         25  survive to reach a hospital. Overall five percent
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          2  survive. But in cities like New York, where traffic

          3  patterns are difficult for the EMS and Fire, where

          4  we have high-rise buildings and elevators, the

          5  survival rate, as documented by the study of

          6  Gallagher published in the Journal of the American

          7  Medical Association in 1994 shows that the survival

          8  rate in New York City is less than two percent.

          9                 We commend the fire and police force

         10  for their increasing efforts and for the role in

         11  fact that the Fire Department has taken on in

         12  meeting the challenge of cardiac arrest and I know

         13  there are data that suggest very strongly that we

         14  have seen a modest improvement in the survival rate

         15  of New York City based upon their efforts.

         16                 The reason for sudden cardiac death

         17  is abnormal cardiac rhythm called ventricular

         18  fibrillation. It is an electrical event in which the

         19  heart quivers, it ceases its contraction, there is

         20  no blood flow to the brain that occurs once

         21  ventricular fibrillation begins and within 15

         22  seconds of the onset of ventricular fibrillation,

         23  the person becomes unconscious, and that is how we

         24  know or how we suspect there is a cardiac arrest.

         25                 The victim collapses and quickly
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          2  loses consciousness, death usually follows unless

          3  the responder restores the rhythm, and the only way

          4  that has ever been shown to restore the rhythm from

          5  ventricular fibrillation is with the large

          6  electrical shock, a defibrillation. There is no

          7  drug. There is no other way once ventricular

          8  fibrillation occurs to actually reverse this except

          9  the shock.

         10                 If it happens that a rescuer is there

         11  with a defibrillator as the person collapses with

         12  cardiac arrest and can put the device on and make it

         13  operate within a minute, 80 percent of people will

         14  survive long-term to leave the hospital. With every

         15  single minute that goes by after that first minute,

         16  ten percent of people do not survive.

         17                 So, if you are at 12 or 13 minutes,

         18  which is a typical time that it takes in New York

         19  City for a defibrillator to reach a victim, you are

         20  down at around two percent. In other words, you use

         21  ten percent. There is no magic five or ten minutes.

         22  There is an improvement in survival with every

         23  minute of reaching the patient with a defibrillator

         24  quicker.

         25                 The AED is indispensable. Sudden
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          2  cardiac death caused by cardiac arrest usually

          3  results from this rhythm ventricular fibrillation.

          4  If the AED is available, it is estimated in the

          5  country that about 50,000 lives could be saved.

          6                 I would estimate, if there are 20

          7  cardiac arrests that occur in New York City every

          8  day and we increased the survival by ten percent,

          9  that means that two people every day will survive

         10  from cardiac arrest or 700 or so people per year

         11  would be saved if we reached them with a

         12  defibrillator with only a modest improvement that we

         13  believe is achievable with the program that has been

         14  proposed.

         15                 The American Heart Association

         16  broadly advocates a chain of survival, which refers

         17  to the four crucial links in emergency treatment of

         18  heart attack. And my reason for mentioning all of

         19  this is to be sure that everybody understands that

         20  it is not just defibrillation which is important,

         21  but it is a sequence of events. The sequence of

         22  events includes the early access to care, which

         23  means early access to a defibrillator generally

         24  through the 911 system, but there are other aspects

         25  of care that are important in the early access,
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          2  including providing drugs and assistance and

          3  obviously delivering the patient to the hospital.

          4                 Early cardiopulmonary resuscitation,

          5  particularly by bystanders is very important in

          6  improving survival from cardiac arrest.

          7                 If performed properly, CPR can add a

          8  few minutes to the time available for successful

          9  defibrillation. Millions of people have learned the

         10  breathing and chest compression techniques of CPR,

         11  but it does not replace defibrillation in saving

         12  lives.

         13                 This is an important concept of

         14  bystander CPR. In the first five minutes after

         15  cardiac arrest, if you have a defibrillator there,

         16  you might just as well go ahead and defibrillate

         17  because the heart is in pretty good shape and the

         18  brain is in pretty good shape.

         19                 After five minutes, if it takes five

         20  minutes to get the defibrillator there and working,

         21  then there is no question that doing bystander CPR

         22  will improve survival, but if bystander CPR is done

         23  for ten minutes, and then the defibrillator comes

         24  by, you still have only a two percent chance of

         25  survival, because even bystander CPR, as important
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          2  as it is, does not preserve bodily functions

          3  efficiently to allow survival, even if

          4  defibrillation occurs.

          5                 Early defibrillation is the third

          6  link in the chain of survival, I have already

          7  described that fully, and early advanced care,

          8  meaning that the EMS system is critically important,

          9  that after defibrillation patients require more

         10  advanced treatment, many of them, including airway

         11  control, intravenous drugs and so forth, on their

         12  way to the hospital.

         13                 To focus a bit on the proposed

         14  legislation.

         15                 The American Heart Association is

         16  satisfied with both bills, both have the goal of

         17  widespread placement of AEDs in public access places

         18  and in public places. Both bills will help to

         19  shorten the time to defibrillation by placing AEDs

         20  in the community and increasing the number of lay

         21  rescuers trained in CPR and in the use of the

         22  defibrillators.

         23                 Until recently, only emergency

         24  medical personnel certified as first responders had

         25  defibrillation capability out of the hospital
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          2  setting. That is now changed. And the reason for the

          3  change is that the technology has gotten better, the

          4  technology has gotten significantly easier to

          5  perform. And in fact, there is a paper in this

          6  week's issue of circulation, a medical journal

          7  published by the American Heart Association, showing

          8  successfully training sixth grade students in the

          9  technique of defibrillation using the new automatic

         10  defibrillators. It took those sixth graders, 97

         11  seconds to successfully do the defibrillation on a

         12  mannequin and it took trained EMT people about 67

         13  seconds. So it took the sixth grade students 30

         14  seconds longer than trained EMTs to do the same job

         15  in a training mode.

         16                 Currently 19 states have explicitly

         17  allowed the use of AEDs by lay responders and

         18  provide immunity for the use of AEDs by trained lay

         19  personnel. This includes the State of New York. I

         20  would just comment to you that the State of New York

         21  has been one of the few and pioneering in their

         22  approval and recognition of the value of these AEDs

         23  in the hands of non-traditional first responders,

         24  that is the public in general.

         25                 In fact, California, which is almost
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          2  ahead of New York in everything is behind New York.

          3  They have no law at this particular time that would

          4  allow a program like this to go forward.

          5                 The law means that the AEDs can be

          6  used by public safety personnel, by security guides,

          7  by flight attendants, by neighborhood volunteers, by

          8  other lay rescuers trained in CPR in the use of

          9  AEDs. As a result, there is a new opportunity to

         10  strengthen defibrillation, a third of these most

         11  important links in the chain of survival.

         12                 The New York State law advocates the

         13  following or requires the following. Training

         14  availability and criteria for potential AED use. It

         15  requires medical oversight. There must be a

         16  physician taking responsibility in a broad sense for

         17  any defibrillator which is placed in a public

         18  building or in a laypersons hands. There must be

         19  maintenance of the AEDs and that is a minor with

         20  most of these AEDs because they are like the fire

         21  detectors, they automatically self-check themselves

         22  and they will bleep for you when they need servicing

         23  or they need to be replaced.

         24                 There needs to be coordination with

         25  the EMS system and that generally means calling the
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          2  EMS system and telling them where a defibrillator is

          3  placed in a public arena so they know to expect a

          4  defibrillator when you walk into that particular

          5  environment and the law proscribes quality control

          6  and oversight.

          7                 Addressing these issues directly or

          8  by connecting any New York City legislation back to

          9  the New York State public law requirements will make

         10  this effort as part of a coordinated and strong

         11  public health initiative, rather than just spurring

         12  a proliferation of devices.

         13                 The American Heart Association

         14  supports the New York City Council's innovations and

         15  initiative to make AED's available in public places.

         16                 Specifically we support Int. No. 447,

         17  mandating that response vehicles owned and operated

         18  by New York City Police and Fire Departments be

         19  equipped with automatic external defibrillators, the

         20  Police and Fire Departments are often the first to

         21  arrive at the scene of an emergency and their timely

         22  use of an AED will save lives.

         23                 Section 2-E, to direct the

         24  Commissioner to issue guidelines regarding AED

         25  maintenance, medical oversight and coordination with
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          2  EMS and quality control as per the state law.

          3                 Moreover, the definition of public

          4  access should include some of the specifics from the

          5  definition of Int. No. 448. The definition of Int.

          6  No. 447 is very broad, which will make it difficult

          7  to implement and monitor.

          8                 If the Council votes to have AEDs in

          9  public places, the AHA suggests that the

         10  implementation of the law be made in phases, as

         11  well, a well thought out plan of implementation will

         12  encourage a coherent and coordinated effort

         13  regarding training and education of both New York

         14  City employees and the lay public.

         15                 AEDs can be effectively placed in

         16  areas where there are populations of high-risk

         17  individuals, places where the elderly are living,

         18  places where people are under stress, such as

         19  airports, train stations, and where there is high

         20  intensity physical activity, such as health and

         21  athletic clubs.

         22                 We want to recommend that each

         23  building or public facility which has an AED be

         24  required to have a sign near the AED, which says

         25  this building is equipped with an AED located at.
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          2                 We also want to recommend that

          3  private organizations which do comply with the

          4  ruling should be eligible for tax credit, as

          5  motivation to make the law reality.

          6                 Death rates from heart attack of New

          7  York City residents, according to a recent study,

          8  were 55 percent higher than the overall American

          9  average, making this issue even more potent in New

         10  York City, along with the problems of reaching the

         11  victim because of traffic and building construction

         12  of high-rise buildings.

         13                 It turns out that the rates of

         14  cardiac arrest among visitors who are often under

         15  stress were 33 percent higher and the number of

         16  people who died from heart attacks after they left

         17  the City was 20 percent lower than they were when

         18  they were in New York City.

         19                 Having AEDs available in police cars,

         20  fire trucks, EMS vehicles, as well as in public

         21  places, we believe will save lives and will make New

         22  York a safer place to visit and perhaps a happier

         23  place.

         24                 Thank you for your attention. I would

         25  be extremely happy to answer questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          3  much, Doctor.

          4                 Let me acknowledge my colleagues who

          5  have joined us. To my extreme left, a former chair

          6  of this Committee, and who used to be a member of

          7  this Committee, Council Member Marty Povman from

          8  Queens. My distinguished colleague who under this

          9  Committee there is a Subcommittee of which presides

         10  over, the Chair of the Subcommittee on Mental

         11  Health, Mental Retardation and Alcohol Services. She

         12  recently returned to this country, while she is

         13  proud to be an American, I think she received the

         14  highest honor that could be stored upon a Jamaican,

         15  whether it be a citizen of Jamaica, so I don't know

         16  whether I should call her the right honorable, but I

         17  do know that she is an honorable Council member who

         18  represents a little district in Brooklyn that she

         19  always reminds us of and that is the right honorable

         20  Council Member Una Clarke.

         21                 Congratulations on your distinguished

         22  appointment as Commander of the Order --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Of the Order

         24  of Distinction, yes. Thank you very much, Mr.

         25  Chairman. I am pleased to be able to use my dual
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          2  citizenship, as others have. And I am extremely

          3  pleased that my nation through its citizens in this

          4  country would want to honor me so.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The ranking

          7  member of the minority, who comes from that island

          8  called Staten Island and represents it here in the

          9  City Council, Council Member Jim Oddo. And of

         10  course, not a member of the Committee but one who,

         11  when we look at this particular issue, has been one

         12  who has been consistent who is constantly been

         13  nudging me on this issue, and his presence just

         14  indicates again his commitment through this issue,

         15  and that is the distinguished colleague also

         16  representing that distinguished island called Staten

         17  Island, Council Member Jay O'Donovan, and I

         18  introduced already my colleague.

         19                 Let me say that because as the

         20  ranking member and of course there are two bills

         21  before us today, one introduced by the Speaker Peter

         22  Vallone, which is Intro. 447, the other is Intro.

         23  448 which is being carried or introduced in this

         24  legislative session by the Minority Leader of the

         25  Council Tom Ognibene, and let me also say that the
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          2  one person who besides Jay who came to me

          3  constantly, and while in this body was one of the

          4  supporters and I know that he also had a bill, and I

          5  can see why the minority leader is carrying this

          6  bill, as the ranking, not the ranking, well the

          7  ranking minority member of this Committee, I don't

          8  want to say majority but the ranking minority

          9  member, let me call on then to speak I guess on

         10  behalf of not only himself by the introducer of

         11  Intro. 448.

         12                 So, I call upon my Council Member Jim

         13  Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman. And let me just start out, I would be

         16  remiss to not commend Speaker Vallone and you, Mr.

         17  Chairman, for ensuring that this Committee addresses

         18  this issue, and we in the City of New York move

         19  forward in ensuring that we do all we can to protect

         20  the health and welfare of the citizens of this city.

         21                 In 1997 I guess is when I first

         22  contacted you, Doctor, in my capacity as counsel to

         23  Council Member Tom Ognibene. I want to thank you for

         24  all the cooperation you have given me and guidance

         25  and the information.
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          2                 Mr. Chairman, I will be very brief, I

          3  just think that some day hopefully soon in the City

          4  of New York AEDs will be as common as fire

          5  extinguishers, and I think part of our role today is

          6  educating the public about the state of AEDs. I

          7  think the public generally has this conception that

          8  these are bulky big tools when in reality the

          9  technology has advanced so that it outpaced the

         10  existing statutes, and the decisions about whether

         11  someone should be shocked or not are made by the

         12  machine.

         13                 So, I think the immediate kneejerk

         14  reaction of some in the government and some in the

         15  public that this is a liability issue or who is

         16  going to maintain them, a lot of those issues are

         17  addressed by the technology itself.

         18                 So, in addition to moving this

         19  legislation towards becoming reality, I think what

         20  we do today is educate the public about what

         21  defibrillators are and how useful they are.

         22                 The fact of the matter is, if you go

         23  into cardiac arrest in New York City, just about

         24  anywhere but inside of a hospital, the likelihood is

         25  you are not going to survive. And we want to put
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          2  Council Member O'Donovan and the Speaker and the

          3  Chairman, we want to put the tools to save people

          4  where the people are, and I will close with this

          5  comment, Doctor.

          6                 I appreciate you specifically

          7  mentioning the definition in our bill. One of the

          8  things I tried to do was incorporate those locations

          9  where people are most likely to go into cardiac

         10  arrest, that was based on a Times article, an

         11  article we came across a few years ago, where people

         12  are actually going into cardiac arrest. That is

         13  where we want to put the tools that hopefully will

         14  save them.

         15                 So, Mr. Chairman, I thank you for

         16  your cooperation and your patience and hopefully

         17  some day soon we will make one of these bills, we

         18  will take the best aspects of each to incorporate

         19  them into making a piece of legislation that will

         20  help the people of the City of New York.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The other person

         23  I want to call, and then I am going to proceed with

         24  the hearing, is someone who consistently has, and I

         25  am sure whoever presided before me has been
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          2  consistent, so as a courtesy I am going to extend

          3  that privilege to Council Member Jay O'Donovan,

          4  which I believe has some remarks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, this isn't a very

          8  complicated bill. It is a good common sense bill.

          9  And when Mr. Rose had come to my office last year

         10  some time, or even before that, and explained what

         11  the mechanism was, portable AED that could be used

         12  by students and demonstrated to, in fact

         13  demonstrated the AEDs to the whole full City

         14  Council. We realized then that since close to

         15  300,000 people die each year with a massive cardiac

         16  arrest, that these machines are simple to use,

         17  portable machines should be placed within the areas

         18  of the City, as my colleagues had mentioned, that

         19  can be readily available, training is easy to help

         20  our constituents and New Yorkers if this tragic

         21  incident should happen.

         22                 So, this bill is here, hopefully we

         23  can move it forward, so the City will be more

         24  protected in the future from a tragic incident of a

         25  cardiac arrest on our streets or in our public
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          2  buildings.

          3                 And I thank you very, very much for

          4  having the hearing today, and hopefully we can vote

          5  something out in the near future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

          7  Council member. Now I have a little dilemma, so I

          8  need your help, Doctor.

          9                 Originally there was supposed to be a

         10  demonstration before I called upon you, I understand

         11  that the person is here now.

         12                 The question is, do you want the

         13  demonstration to go forward and then take questions

         14  afterwards, or do you want the questions first and

         15  then --

         16                 DR. WEISFELDT: Yes, I think seeing,

         17  if the demonstration is available we ought to show

         18  it, because one look is worth of a thousand words of

         19  description of about how straightforward this is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, if my

         21  colleagues will allow me. What happened was we were

         22  supposed to have the demonstration first,

         23  unfortunately he may -- he comes from Staten Island,

         24  do you know where that island is? Where it is hard

         25  to get across the bridge and got stuck in traffic,
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          2  but he is here so if you will allow me, then I will

          3  call, and I know Council Member Harrison was the

          4  first one to ask me to allow her to ask questions,

          5  so if you would bear with me, why don't we have the

          6  demonstration and go into the questions.

          7                 MR. ROSE: My job today is to put a

          8  name and a face to the AED. There are two questions

          9  I think that need to be addressed with the AED. Why

         10  we need them, and when we do need them, why we need

         11  them now.

         12                 The first question, and I am sorry I

         13  am late but I assume Dr. Weisfeldt mentioned that

         14  the big issue is fibrillation. What happens when

         15  someone goes into cardiac arrest, they had a normal

         16  beat and then suddenly the heart goes into wild

         17  chaos. It looks like a bag of worms. People who have

         18  cracked the chest and seen the heart fibrillating

         19  talk about it as uncoordinated chaos.

         20                 The ventricular fibrillation, the

         21  ventricles, the bottom part of the heart, the actual

         22  pumping part, and when they go into this, they

         23  deplete their nutrients, within ten minutes they are

         24  done.

         25                 I just had an argument with an EMS
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          2  director at a hospital in Staten Island who said I

          3  wish you a lot of luck but I have never seen an AED

          4  convert a dead patient. I said of course you

          5  haven't, Dave, you don't get there in time.

          6                 And it is not a knock on EMS, it is

          7  not a knock on anybody, but the reality is fib lasts

          8  about ten minutes, and every minute you delay, you

          9  delay the possibility of recovery.

         10                 So, what we need to be able to do is

         11  find a way to get electricity to the patient, find a

         12  way to have electricity there ready when the patient

         13  goes into cardiac arrest.

         14                 The machine is simple. Ordinarily I

         15  bring a 12-year-old up out of the audience. We have

         16  none today so I will have to do.

         17                 The AED, when I teach CPR classes, I

         18  explain that the AED, that defibrillation is as

         19  simple as 1, 2, 3. In CPR classes in the past, we

         20  told people that CPR is ABC, Airway, Breathing and

         21  Circulation, and that is the very good sequencer, it

         22  is a very good memory aid, by CPR by itself is

         23  incomplete.

         24                 We know now that the first response

         25  is ABCD, defibrillation is a key component. And with
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          2  the advent of the AED, the machine enables

          3  defibrillation to be a basic life support skill.

          4                 Let's say we are in the Council

          5  chambers, and a speaker suddenly grabs his chest,

          6  goes to the floor, ut-oh, ut-oh, ut-oh, does anyone

          7  know CPR? Let's call 911. So we call 911, they may

          8  be two or three blocks away but I can tell you how

          9  far away two or three blocks away is. So what do we

         10  do? If we luckily, and a year ago when I spoke to

         11  the Council, there was talk of the Council acquiring

         12  an AED. There a number of manufacturers, this is the

         13  heart stream machine called the Forerunner, and you

         14  can see, like manual defibrillators, defibrillation

         15  is as simply as 123. So what we do is oh, my God,

         16  oh, my God, we are doing CPR, as soon as the AED

         17  arrives, we stop CPR. We won.

         18                 We open up the pads. And it won't let

         19  us go any further until we do what it instructs.

         20  Single use, multiple purpose. They will read the

         21  EKG, they deliver the shock.

         22                 The first time I showed this to

         23  Councilman O'Donovan, we brought is secretary in,

         24  and she had never seen the machine before, we said

         25  go ahead, shock. Well how can -- turn the machine
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          2  on, the machine will tell you what to do.

          3                 So, we will apply the pads the way

          4  the picture on the device tells us to put them. We

          5  bracket the heart, apply the pads and plug in the

          6  connector, just like the machine says. It

          7  automatically goes to analysis.

          8                 The machine will now read the EKG, it

          9  will compare the cardiac rhythm to its library of

         10  shockable rhythms. If it thinks that the patient is

         11  in ventricular fibrillation, the machine knows how

         12  much to shock.

         13                 If there is no pulse, you do what the

         14  machine says. The patient may or may not jump.

         15                 It goes back to analysis, it reads

         16  the EKG again. Just like a trained emergency room

         17  nurse or an ICU doctor. If it finds that this is

         18  still a shockable rhythm, it will deliver three

         19  shocks. It will shock. It will analyze. It will

         20  shock, if it is still shockable, what should we do,

         21  oh, wise machine? We will open the airway. He is not

         22  breathing. But he does have a pulse. So, that's why

         23  the machine said check the patient. Because it is

         24  not going to shock. In the history of AEDs, in the

         25  ten or 15 years they have been used, the AED has
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          2  never shocked anyone who should not have gotten a

          3  shock.

          4                 It should be packaged with a

          5  protective breathing device, so that we can put this

          6  into place and breathe the victim, without having to

          7  worry about the possibility of transmission of

          8  disease. It is really a magical machine.

          9                 After the deed is done, how do we

         10  know what happened? How do we know if this

         11  effectively did what we said it did?

         12                 Inside this machine there is a

         13  flashcard that can be put into a laptop, any laptop

         14  that has the software and download the information.

         15  It will tell you the time that the machine was

         16  turned on, the time that you analyze, the time that

         17  you shock, how many shocks. It will give you a

         18  digital printout of the pre-shock and the post shock

         19  rhythms. So that after the fact when you want to do

         20  quality assurance, and make sure the machine is what

         21  we say it is, and that it does what we say it should

         22  do, we know that that happened.

         23                 When I do this usually now with

         24  12-year-olds, 12-year-olds are stunned, and the rest

         25  of the audience is stunned. The stories and the
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          2  literature of an 11-year-old who carries the AED to

          3  school because the seven-year-old brother has a

          4  congenital defect and requires shock. They are

          5  simple, they are easy. But the message is, if we

          6  don't get shock to that victim within the first five

          7  minutes or so, he is history.

          8                 They should be as commonplace as a

          9  fire extinguisher.

         10                 The other issue that I wanted to

         11  mention was the fact that this machine will pay

         12  society back, no program will happen, no mandate

         13  will take place if it is unfunded.

         14                 They did a study in Rochester,

         15  Minnesota. They looked at the machine. They looked

         16  at the cost of the machine, the cost of the

         17  training, the cost of disposables. They looked at

         18  how many people were saved over the course of a

         19  year. They found that it cost $2,000 for every life

         20  that they saved.

         21                 So, if you think about that, you have

         22  to ask, if one of you went into cardiac arrest and

         23  now we bring you back -- see, the role of the AED is

         24  to return the victim to taxpayer status. That's what

         25  we want, because this is not going to save that
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          2  96-year-old person with two heart attacks and

          3  congestive heart failure, she goes into fibrillation

          4  as a secondary event.

          5                 But the 38-year-old fireman who grabs

          6  his chest at the scene of the fire, the 54-year-old

          7  stockbroker, who collapses on the trading floor,

          8  rapid defibrillation will bring him back, send him

          9  to his family, let him send his kids to college, let

         10  him take care of his wife. It's a good idea. Because

         11  we can break the rhythm, we can get him to the

         12  hospital, we can give him a bypass graph, we can

         13  give him thrombolytic medication, we can put him

         14  back to a sustainable productive life. That is the

         15  goal of the AED, that is the goal of the American

         16  Heart Association.

         17                 I am open for questions. Should I sit

         18  here or should I sit there?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You should sit

         20  there. Thank you.

         21                 DR. WEISFELDT: The cost of that

         22  device is about $2,500.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry?

         24                 DR. WEISFELDT: The cost of that

         25  device is about $2,500.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

          3                 We have also been joined by Chris

          4  Quinn, from Manhattan, who is a member of this

          5  Committee.

          6                 Council Member Harrison.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Just as a

          8  point of information, please.

          9                 I have no problem with the machine,

         10  it's a good thing. The question that I have to ask

         11  is, what is your experience in terms of its being

         12  where it should be at a time when someone needs it?

         13                 For example, you mentioned a fireman

         14  grabbing his chest. Well, in the course of a fire,

         15  the fireman is not being surrounded by his

         16  colleagues, the fireman is off fighting a fire, and

         17  if he grabs his chest and falls to the floor, it may

         18  be a couple of minutes, maybe seconds, I don't know,

         19  but time is going by, for anyone to even see that he

         20  is down, and then how do they identify the fact that

         21  he needs defibrillation, as opposed to inhaling

         22  fresh oxygen to take care of the smoke that may have

         23  invaded his lungs or the stockbroker on the floor.

         24  The stockbroker on the floor is supposed to be very

         25  crowded, very full of activity, he can fall down.
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          2  Maybe he has an insulin shot. How do you identify in

          3  the first place the fact that it is a heart

          4  condition that calls for the use of?

          5                 DR. WEISFELDT: The medical issues

          6  here are that of people who collapse suddenly and

          7  have a cardiac arrest, 70 percent of them when they

          8  are adults have ventricular fibrillation. So, of

          9  adults, only 30 percent have other causes besides

         10  ventricular fibrillation. And of those who survive,

         11  almost all of the ones who survive have ventricular

         12  fibrillation, but the ones who have internal

         13  bleeding, the ones who have massive stroke,

         14  unfortunately we have very little to offer.

         15                 The ones we have something to offer

         16  are the 70 percent with ventricular fibrillation

         17  where we can defibrillate.

         18                 If there is an obstructed airway,

         19  there is no question about it, in the right setting,

         20  that is in a restaurant where everybody is eating

         21  you do want to pay attention to the possibility of a

         22  foreign body in the airway, but, again, if you look

         23  at the total mass of cardiac arrest, 70 percent are

         24  ventricular fibrillation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: So, let me
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          2  ask the second part of my question. The essence of

          3  this effective use of the machine is time. In order

          4  for it to get used maximally as described in crowded

          5  places, where do you place a machine that it is

          6  readily accessible so that it can be used

          7  effectively.

          8                 If you are at a ball game or if you

          9  are at some kind of a mass meeting event, I mean the

         10  numbers of machines that should be available that

         11  you recommend be made available, the placement of

         12  the machines to be maximally effective, you know,

         13  how have you anticipated that question?

         14                 MR. ROSE: Well, there are two parts

         15  to that. One is the C management and the other one

         16  is accessibility.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:

         18  Accessibility is my primary question.

         19                 MR. ROSE: There are situations where

         20  it has already happened. At O'Hare Airport they have

         21  a program that they call Heart Save, what they have

         22  done is, just like a fire extinguisher, placed an

         23  AED in an alarm cabinet, one-minute walk, from any

         24  spot in the airport.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Any spot?
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          2  That's very good.

          3                 MR. ROSE: If you should collapse on

          4  one of those moving walkways, no matter where you

          5  are, you are within one minute of a machine.

          6                 Because in the airport there are

          7  pilots and flight attendants, there are health care

          8  workers who might be on vacation or in the airport,

          9  what you do is you run to the machine and it has a

         10  sign above it so you can see from a distance, you

         11  open the cabinet, the cabinet alarms, it rings a

         12  central alarm so EMS and police are notified. You

         13  take the machine, you bring it to the person. Now we

         14  move on to the management, how do we know if we

         15  really need an AED? It is as simple as ABCD.

         16                 What happens is, if you should

         17  collapse on the floor right now, we really won't

         18  know what is wrong, but what we will need to do is

         19  use that sequence. I will open your airway. If all

         20  that happened is you had an emotional distress and

         21  passed out, an anxiety attack, and now your tongue

         22  fell backwards when your jaw relaxed. By opening

         23  your airway that may be all you have to do. If you

         24  are breathing, then you still have a pulse.

         25                 If I open your airway and you are not
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          2  breathing, then I will give you some breaths, I will

          3  go to B, and the next step is check C. If you have

          4  no circulation, the odds are you are in

          5  fibrillation. And even if you are not, the machine

          6  can't hurt you.

          7                 The bottom line is that if you have

          8  no pulse you are dead, and there is very little that

          9  I can do to hurt you.

         10                 But if you are in fibrillation,

         11  clearly the AED is going to read that, because that

         12  is the point. ABC, once we get to C there is no

         13  circulation, apply the pads, plug in the connector,

         14  and the machine will walk you through it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: It calls for

         16  a tremendous amount of education among the

         17  population of the City.

         18                 MR. ROSE: Well, people who use it --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: It calls for

         20  a very concentrated course of making people aware of

         21  the use of and the availability of.

         22                 MR. ROSE: For sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: I mean it

         24  was really a program that will be the equivalent of

         25  having taught CPR as effectively as it has been
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          2  taught over the years.

          3                 MR. ROSE: Well, more effectively, the

          4  Heart Association has developed a four-hour program.

          5                 In order to train health care

          6  providers for adult, infants and child and risk

          7  factors and signs and symptoms, it is a two-day

          8  program. For advanced providers it is an eight-hour

          9  program.

         10                 Heart's developed a video mediated

         11  program where in a four-hour program I can take

         12  someone with, in fact I already have, people with no

         13  medical background, physical trainers, high school

         14  kids who work in the gym, security guards for whom

         15  English-as-a-second language. We bring them in two

         16  hours of CPR skills, two hours of AED scenarios and

         17  in that four-hour course they are ready to rock and

         18  roll.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let's not just

         22  throw things out, because my understanding, and

         23  correct me if I am wrong is whether you go to -- in

         24  other words, the training does cost money. It is not

         25  free, is it?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 MR. ROSE: I have a mortgage.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no that is

          4  not the point. I want to be sure. See, what sounds

          5  good looks good. The reality is there is a tag,

          6  there is a price. What we need to do here, and this

          7  is what these hearings are about is, and I think,

          8  Doctor, you in your statement, you pointed out that

          9  New York City, or at least as we move forward, I

         10  think we should be looking at where we will get the

         11  maximum in order to show that in the longrun,

         12  whatever the cost may be, we get back two and three

         13  times fold, which is what I think has been said

         14  here.

         15                 So, while everyone would love to see

         16  these things, I am not at that stage yet, but I am

         17  now asking people to start exploring, you know, I

         18  just heard 2,000 per person, per portable, but then

         19  you have got to keep in mind, folks, also that when

         20  you start adding, depending on where we are going to

         21  have these places and at what location, what the

         22  total costs are going to be.

         23                 So, I just want to be clear, and that

         24  is just on that. Then there are additional costs,

         25  like training. For example, I am told that the
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          2  State, for example, charges $100 fee for the

          3  training registration, and in addition to that, with

          4  the CPR training, there is a $50 cost. So, as we

          5  discuss this, I want also you to keep in mind that

          6  it looks good, and I am ready, but are we ready to

          7  put it into the budget? And that is what these

          8  hearings are about. And I must say that I look

          9  forward in working with you, Doctor, because maybe

         10  what we should do is look at where we could begin to

         11  do it, get the most out of it so that then we can

         12  clearly show whoever might have doubts whether they

         13  be conservative, whether we may be liberal, whether

         14  we may be middle of the road, when we look at the

         15  overall cost, that it may look a large amount today

         16  but tomorrow we will get back double, triple fold,

         17  and even those who are the most conservative might

         18  then feel that there is a need to do this investment

         19  now. And I think that is where I, as the Chairman,

         20  am trying to keep this at, okay?

         21                 MR. ROSE: Can I comment on cost, just

         22  to let you know what is happening on the street?

         23                 I provide the Heart Saver AED course.

         24  The cost of the course, which includes CPR and the

         25  AED training, I charge $90. That includes not just
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          2  the four-hour class by the text book, the card

          3  itself and a protective breathing device. Because

          4  Heart advocates that everyone who takes the course

          5  receive a protective breathing device.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I just want

          7  to be clear, as we move along. That is his cost at

          8  $90, however, someone can go to the American Red

          9  Cross or someone can go to somewhere else and do a

         10  CPR, and I am telling you that there is a course

         11  there too. So, we look at the overall, it is not

         12  just equipment, it is all of the other auxiliaries

         13  or miscellaneous things, but this is what the

         14  hearings are about, so I just want to be clear on

         15  that.

         16                 Council Member Clarke.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman. You are on the track that I wanted to look

         19  at, and I just wondered, in any of the Cities where

         20  there are implementation, whether there is any

         21  demonstration of public and private partnership to

         22  make it affordable, usually when these programs come

         23  in and a person like myself gets excited about it,

         24  my community gets to be the last which the

         25  availability is and that is probably usually where

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  it is needed most.

          3                 I can imagine that the hotels can

          4  afford to train and have that there, but how about

          5  the many large housing developments where there are

          6  so many poor people who from all intents and

          7  purposes never get medical care until it is almost

          8  always too late? How do we attack that kind of

          9  problem? And when we make this kind of investment,

         10  to make sure that the lives we save are, you know,

         11  there is some equity in my mind about how they are

         12  placed, how people are trained and the availability

         13  of this.

         14                 DR. WEISFELDT: I think the two bills

         15  really go, to answer your question directly, that is

         16  to say, what is really going on now is that in fact

         17  in businesses where people have lost lives or sudden

         18  death in New York City, and in businesses that are

         19  concerned about the health of their employees,

         20  already AEDs with medical supervision and under the

         21  state law, are all being implemented in what I would

         22  describe as a public access mode.

         23                 What is missing is exactly what you

         24  are referring to, which is a broader mandate that in

         25  all buildings where all people exist in the City of
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          2  New York, they should have as close to equal

          3  protection from sudden death, as those people who

          4  happen to find themselves in an office building that

          5  is protected. So, the bill intends to say that every

          6  building with 600 people in it for the majority of

          7  the day should have a defibrillator, should have, as

          8  they do a fire extinguisher, as they do other

          9  protective aspects of what the City of New York

         10  mandates within the code and within the laws and

         11  regulations of the City.

         12                 So I think it is a very important

         13  stage in advancement to go from the implementation

         14  of the program as it is now on a selective basis

         15  where money is available and where interest lies to

         16  one in which the overall public, the problem is

         17  addressed overall in all public buildings where all

         18  buildings would have a significant number of members

         19  of the public in them.

         20                 And just going back to Council Member

         21  Harrison's comment just for a second about how are

         22  you going to figure out where it is and how to

         23  implement it, in the conversations that I had with

         24  Councilman Oddo on this issue, I commented that

         25  either there should be, as there is in the bill, a
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          2  sign at the entrance to every public bill that has

          3  an AED, that says this building is equipped with an

          4  AED and if you need it, here is where you go, this

          5  is the number you call to get the AED.

          6                 Another approach to that issue that

          7  would be extremely helpful would be to in some way

          8  suggest that the best place for AEDs to be uniformly

          9  placed would be at or near a security desk or the

         10  entrance of a public building, where there would be

         11  a security guard who would not only be hopefully the

         12  person trained to use the device, if the rescuer

         13  didn't know how to use the device, but also

         14  potentially would be there to direct the EMS system

         15  when they came into the building to where the

         16  cardiac arrest occurred and to ease the access and

         17  also to provide security for the device from the

         18  point of view of having the device stay there and

         19  not disappear or be used by somebody who is not

         20  inappropriate to use the device.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And let me just

         22  say to my colleague that, especially myself, because

         23  I grew up in a public housing development until

         24  recently, please note that we have over 2,900

         25  buildings which are part of NYCHA. And second, if
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          2  you take the scenario the doctor just made, we do

          3  not have security where you have a security person

          4  in each of those buildings, and even where you do,

          5  which is rare, which is in a senior citizens

          6  building, that is really rare.

          7                 So, again, I think what I would like

          8  to do, besides being informed and what it does, is

          9  start looking at what it will cost, and then the

         10  question I think, which I think you put it ably, is

         11  we have to decide, is you really have to build a

         12  momentum, and I am not at an advantage or

         13  disadvantage, and I am not releasing because I asked

         14  our Finance people to put together for me a quick

         15  scenario of what both bills will cost us, and

         16  because it was done at my request, it is not for

         17  public consumption at this point, but this is

         18  something that we are going to be working with, and

         19  that is, whatever we say, whatever we do, we have to

         20  then find the means. And I must tell you that right

         21  now, neither the federal, state, or local government

         22  is providing the means to implement this.

         23                 So, our role will be do we believe as

         24  a City government and as a legislative body that

         25  what we have said we do like we do always at budget
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          2  time, do we appropriate funds?

          3                 Now, I will tell you that my

          4  experience here in 15 years, and if I turn to Morty

          5  who has been here longer than I have, or to you,

          6  Jay, is that we begin and we do something with the

          7  hope that then we can do the total. And I think that

          8  is the kind of question I don't think anybody could

          9  ask on that side. That is for us to evaluate and get

         10  the facts. And say, for example, I think I heard the

         11  first responses are those who tend to get to the

         12  scene first before anything else for the most part

         13  is, police, fire, you name it, emergencies, well I

         14  am not saying that is what we are doing, but there

         15  is a beginning.

         16                 I must tell you that right now if you

         17  take the Police Department and the Fire Department

         18  only, in terms of vehicles, in order to do that we

         19  have over 2,000 vehicles both in the Fire Department

         20  and in the Police Department.

         21                 So, I am only throwing these things

         22  out because I hope we keep our focus on that after

         23  it is all said and done, in order to do it, we not

         24  only need to provide 2,000 plus by whatever the

         25  number is, but then you need the training. And I
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          2  repeat, the training not necessarily is free

          3  training. And you have a variety of training. In

          4  your case you package it. There are those who do the

          5  CPR, which does not do the other thing, but all of

          6  these things I hope and I ask you to keep in mind,

          7  and as we move ahead with these bills, which

          8  eventually we will have a bill, the question is what

          9  is it we are going to do, and what is it going to

         10  cost the City of New York.

         11                 Having said that, then I call Council

         12  Member O'Donovan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Council Member

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, I am sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: My following

         17  question was what should come first, the public

         18  education or the implementation, and if you see them

         19  as partners, how would it best be done?

         20                 DR. WEISFELDT: I think the general

         21  intent of the New York State Law is very sound,

         22  saying that to implement a defibrillator program

         23  under reasonable circumstances you have to have to

         24  have at least one, preferably more than one

         25  individual properly trained in the use of the device
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          2  who understands the device and would be responsible

          3  for maintaining it.

          4                 So I think that would be the minimum

          5  standard.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And the law also

          7  says that if properly trained, then the state will

          8  cover you, i.e., liability.

          9                 DR. WEISFELDT: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So that just

         11  because it is in this room, and there is the box, it

         12  doesn't mean that everybody could run to it, pay it

         13  out and start using it.

         14                 Again I urge you, let me just request

         15  of the Council, maybe we should take, and I think it

         16  is in the packet, you should read what the law

         17  mandates first, how you can then implement but the

         18  bottom line I think is proper training in order to

         19  be protected under the legal.

         20                 Okay, Council Member Clarke.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         24  O'Donovan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Yes, Mr.
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          2  Chairman.

          3                 On the cost factor here, there are

          4  two issues here, sir. One is the private sector and

          5  the other is the public sector of the City of New

          6  York. Now, in the private sector it is our intent

          7  here that any private company by this law that has

          8  to have the AEDs in their building, 600 or more

          9  folks, and it is an awful lot of buildings that we

         10  have, Mr. Chairman, that our intent is that they

         11  would, when they lay this money out for the defib,

         12  $2,500, and also training to a private person, such

         13  as Mr. Rose, or the Doctor's organization, that that

         14  expense would be a tax credit to them.

         15                 So buying a machine, paying for the

         16  training, paying for whatever licenses it might be,

         17  would be a tax credit to them. That is number one.

         18                 Number two, in the City of New York,

         19  the City agencies, we can, and we have done this

         20  many, many times, such as, for example, the Fire

         21  Department or the Police Department, the Housing

         22  Authority, whatever Department it might be, the

         23  schools, that they would then also train within the

         24  agency a specific department that would train at no

         25  cost to the agency that to train people within that
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          2  agency with regard to the defibrillators.

          3                 So, I think that the cost itself and

          4  the private industry with tax credits will be

          5  minimum. I think the cost and training to the

          6  City of New York, other than buying the machine

          7  itself for the City of New York, our agencies, would

          8  be a function, as you say, Mr. Chairman, of the will

          9  of this Council to provide the public with good

         10  public policy the money in a budget to buy initially

         11  the defibs for the City of New York.

         12                 I think private industry will do it

         13  by themselves because the incentives are there and

         14  the tax deferment for them.

         15                 But public policy and public monies

         16  should be provided, again, in a budget, when we have

         17  something like this that we are hearing, that could

         18  save lives.

         19                 So I think the cost will be minimal

         20  in private and in public and I think we should move

         21  forward.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me again, I

         24  would like to set the record straight. When I was a

         25  Council Member just sitting on committees, I would
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          2  say a lot of things, but when you become chairman of

          3  the Committee, as you know, Mr. Chairman, and I see

          4  other people who are chairs, you have

          5  responsibilities and you must give leadership.

          6                 Let me just say that while you refer

          7  to the public/private sector, let me just clearly

          8  again remind you again that the tax credit cannot be

          9  solely done by the City of New York without the

         10  state's input. And I want to be clear, we just can't

         11  say things and keep in mind how it gets done.

         12                 Sales tax is a good example, you

         13  know? We get one week, and depending upon whether

         14  you got up on the good side or the bad side,

         15  sometimes we move to do one week and then the state

         16  goes and does something else.

         17                 But again, I am not against it, I

         18  want to be clear. I don't want the public to get the

         19  impression that tax credit sounds good, but we are

         20  the creatures of the state, and without the state

         21  input, it is meaningless. We cannot do it ourselves.

         22                 With respect to the public. My

         23  experience in dealing with bureaucratic agencies is

         24  they can, if they had the will, but if they don't

         25  have the will -- and I must say to you that every
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          2  time we do something it costs money. So, yes, we

          3  have to train somebody, and I don't think that is

          4  freebees, but the purpose of this hearing is to

          5  bring these before us to discuss it, to get a clear

          6  understanding of what it entails, what the cost is

          7  really going to be, and then ultimately we have to

          8  decide whether we move forward.

          9                 And I am ready to do whatever the

         10  will of 26 members of the Council which votes upon a

         11  budget, but I just wanted to makes sure of that,

         12  that even with tax credit, if the state is not

         13  willing to move with us, then someone, you don't

         14  stop the private sector from purchasing, they can do

         15  it and they can also do the training, they don't

         16  need us. But I don't want to give the impression

         17  that all of a sudden you go ahead and do it, and do

         18  the training and then you can get reimbursed, that

         19  process is more than just here.

         20                 Okay, Council Member Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman. Did somebody forget to pay the heating

         23  bill in here? It is freezing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I beg your

         25  pardon?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Did someone

          3  forget to pay the heating bill?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, let me tell

          5  you, you might have more influence on the other side

          6  of the aisle being Republican than I would. So, any

          7  help, believe me I would be sitting here freezing

          8  and only you can help us.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO I just want to

         10  follow, Mr. Chairman, up on the whole issue of cost

         11  and how it impacts on how we implement this

         12  legislation.

         13                 Let me just say, Mr. Chairman, if I

         14  had to pick one Council Member to go out and fight

         15  to get money for an initiative that is worthwhile,

         16  it would be you. So I am confident that when all is

         17  said and done we will bring some dollars back for

         18  this legislation.

         19                 Admittedly when I sat down to write

         20  Intro. 448, we did not include a training provision

         21  as in Councilman O'Donovan's bill.

         22                 The mindset that we had at the time

         23  was that there is already a universe of individuals,

         24  whether they be off-duty police officers,

         25  firefighters, doctors, people who were trained who
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          2  in their every day life would either be at Shea

          3  Stadium or would be at the Port Authority or

          4  traveling to and from work so that if we actually

          5  put the tools to save lives there where those folks

          6  were, we could actually save a few lives.

          7                 My point being, perhaps we can look

          8  at sort of a piecemeal approach, but my question to

          9  you is, is that an accurate assumption? Are there

         10  currently people who as part of their every day

         11  lives who were trained in this, who could actually

         12  be saving a life tomorrow, had we given them the

         13  tools to do that.

         14                 MR. ROSE: I think someone commented

         15  earlier how the technology, Leap Frog's legislation,

         16  and that has clearly been the case, the AED is a

         17  very talented machine. What happens is that the

         18  infrastructure doesn't really exist right now. A lot

         19  of health care professionals, if you were to grab an

         20  ICU nurse coming out of Bellevue and say, look,

         21  there is an AED on the bus to Atlantic City, do you

         22  want the bus driver to shock your grandmother? Some

         23  people don't understand that the machine is very

         24  simple.

         25                 I think that we do need to couple
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          2  training with a provision of the machine. On the

          3  issue of cost, I think that you are right, I think

          4  the voice of reason says that we must couple cost

          5  with the device because the Heart Association gets a

          6  lot of abuse sometimes because they run fundraisers

          7  and people say oh money money money, where is your

          8  mission? Well, without money there is no mission.

          9                 So, I think that we do need to

         10  address funding.

         11                 But one way to look at it is to set

         12  up a pyramid of positions. You are saying let's put

         13  them, where can we get the biggest impact from them?

         14                 We can make a wishlist and put

         15  machines, and on this list put machines on every

         16  street corner, and then what we need to do is start

         17  funding it from the top and then see how far down

         18  that pyramid we can get. I think that people of

         19  goodwill, people of reason can accomplish that.

         20                 I spoke with someone from a City

         21  agency who said, you know, look a Reese Park, we

         22  have a seven-mile stretch and there are two

         23  buildings for the seven-mile stretch. Now, will two

         24  machines cover that entire beach? So, I said how

         25  many do you have now? Two is certainly better. And
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          2  if that is how it starts, that's fine.

          3                 In the public housing buildings,

          4  there is always somebody in the building. If it is

          5  the superintendent, we could train the building

          6  super, three or four people from the staff who will

          7  be in the building, they have a machine and they

          8  have a beeper. If you are on 13A and Uncle Leo

          9  suddenly gets chest pain, you call 911 and beep the

         10  beeper. So the super downstairs could grab the

         11  machine and run up, the same way he would run up if

         12  your faucet was spraying water across the bathroom.

         13  We can train the superintendent to do that. To count

         14  to three and take a pulse.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, I want to

         16  keep the focus on one, do we believe after all of

         17  the facts, all of what is given to us, when we look

         18  at the cost, I think we should be looking at what do

         19  we implement in terms of is it phases or what have

         20  you, but I must tell you that if you listen to

         21  Council Member Clark's question, and I listen to

         22  Council Member Oddo's question, that is exactly what

         23  I am trying to avoid.

         24                 For example, there is no doubt I am

         25  in support of the Police Department, the Fire
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          2  Department, especially the Fire Department now with

          3  the merger and EMS and what have you, and the first

          4  respond, but I must tell you that if the mission is

          5  to have a machine available so someone who is

          6  trained can come and use it, and if we are going to

          7  use solely police and fire, I am striking out

          8  because in our communities, with all due respect,

          9  they don't live in our community. So that training

         10  for us, and I think that is what she is coming from,

         11  is meaningless.

         12                 But I am not going to be parochial.

         13  Again, I think as chairman of this Committee, I

         14  think what we need to get is a consensus, one, do we

         15  believe that this is the way we should be

         16  proceeding. I believe that, not because just now

         17  this is an issue that has been brought before this

         18  Committee in the 15 years that I have been in the

         19  City Council, I have seen chairs -- I am the chair

         20  now, but I am telling you right now, this issue, I

         21  mean you talk about last year, I remember in the

         22  Health Committee a similar demonstration, and it is

         23  not the first time. For me, I am beyond that. I

         24  think there is enough showing me, well the first

         25  time I saw the machine it was from the beginning,
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          2  but now I am seeing a modern machine that now walks

          3  you through push buttons and that stuff. So, as far

          4  as I am concerned, I am beyond the gate.

          5                 Now I have to look at the reality of

          6  how do we implement, and I must tell you, to do that

          7  it costs money. Well, the question then is, are we

          8  prepared to place in the budget the means to get

          9  this done? I think we have until June to, one, to

         10  see what is so. If we see that in order to enlighten

         11  and put into play some kind of program that we can

         12  start to educate, start to implement, to show that

         13  look at how many people's lives were saved, by the

         14  way, at a restaurant or by the way at a ball park or

         15  by the way, whatever it is, then the conservative

         16  mentality of just looking at the cost and look what

         17  we are spending will change if we actually then put

         18  that cost into a human life, as you said.

         19                 What would it cost us if someone all

         20  of a sudden is in a hospital and how long and all of

         21  this other thing. So there would be a time for this.

         22  I don't think we can give an instant answer right

         23  now. I think that it is just really to educate

         24  ourselves, first of all, before we get to the

         25  public.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 Now, having said that, Council Member

          3  O'Donovan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.

          6                 Mr. Chairman, very briefly, the

          7  intent of this legislation, as you have indicated is

          8  really not to streamline the bill and say, well, we

          9  are going to have just the Fire Department or the

         10  Police Department be responsible for this.

         11                 The intent of this legislation is, in

         12  fact, to have every school building, every library

         13  building, every ferryboat, if I may be so parochial,

         14  coming from Staten Island, every beach, and parks in

         15  beaches, every park, every public building where

         16  people come, who use our City facilities, do indeed

         17  have an AED. So, will it cost money? Yes. That is on

         18  the public side.

         19                 The private side, every building with

         20  600 people. Every building in the City of New York,

         21  in Grand Central Station, et cetera, and every

         22  restaurant will perhaps, over a certain amount of

         23  people, will have one. So this is a big, big

         24  undertaking. Can we do it as a pilot program?

         25  Probably we can, and maybe we should look at it that
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          2  way.

          3                 But make no mistake about it, this

          4  legislation is all encompassing and I believe that

          5  through the initiatives of this wonderful Committee

          6  that you chair, Mr. Chairman, and your staff, we can

          7  come up with ways of doing it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I assure you,

          9  Councilman, that is our intent.

         10                 I started out being a liberal, I have

         11  learned to become conservative, and I hope that I am

         12  the middle of the road person, and that is what I am

         13  trying to do.

         14                 I am trying to get a consensus,

         15  because I must tell you, if tomorrow, if the

         16  Administration right now introduced a budget mod to

         17  us, and this is not the numbers that I got, I just

         18  want to make sure you understand it, and I am the

         19  vice chairman of the Committee, I am the majority

         20  whip, I count heads. I want to see where 26 bodies

         21  are going to be when we have to put $30 million into

         22  a budget.

         23                 If all that you have said, which is

         24  the intent, and believe me, I am with you, I am just

         25  simply saying I think we better start working
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          2  together, because we have to show that ultimately

          3  our goal is to do exactly what you just said, in

          4  every restaurant, in every stadium, in every school,

          5  in everything.

          6                 I must tell you, I think one of the

          7  things we must do is to show that whatever it is

          8  going to cost us, that every cent is worth it that

          9  we have spent, because we have saved lives.

         10                 But then we have to compare that in

         11  saving lives, if we didn't, this is what it will

         12  really cost us if we didn't do it, and I am thinking

         13  that is what I am trying to set here, because it is

         14  not about the little box, it is nice, it is compact,

         15  it is carried around, push the button and I hope one

         16  day you want me to really bring it, and I hope it is

         17  multilingual because the census of the Year 2000

         18  will show, the majority of the people in this City

         19  is not only Spanish but Asians, and you name it, but

         20  I hope that one day we can have a machine that is

         21  multilingual.

         22                 MR. ROSE: Eleven languages.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Pardon?

         24                 MR. ROSE: It is programmed, it can be

         25  programmed in 11 languages.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excellent. So

          3  that is one problem I don't have to worry about

          4  anymore.

          5                 But anyway, let's move on. I think

          6  the point has been made, and I am prepared to work

          7  with this Committee and my colleagues in the

          8  Council, because after it is all said and done, what

          9  needs to be done to implement, is to appropriate the

         10  funds.

         11                 Currently right now the reason why we

         12  don't have a program is because we have not done

         13  that and I think we need to move from that, okay?

         14                 Anyone else?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman. I

         16  think you have become a compassionate conservative.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I think you

         18  have a Staten Island team over here. There is a

         19  relay race going on here at Staten Island.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, any other

         21  questions?

         22                 Seeing no other questions, let me

         23  thank both of you for taking your time to come here.

         24                 MR. ROSE: Thank you very much.

         25                 DR. WEISFELDT: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. ROSE: A definition, they say a

          3  conservative is a liberal who has been mugged. A

          4  liberal is a conservative who is having chest pains.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: But you

          7  know you don't have to be a liberal or a

          8  conservative or a republican or a democrat to use

          9  this machine.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Doctor, I am

         11  sorry?

         12                 DR. WEISFELDT: We are very happy to

         13  continue to work with you in the direction that you

         14  are going.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, sir. I

         16  look forward to doing that.

         17                 MR. ORENGO: Ms. Natatia Griffith.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Would you

         19  identify yourself for the record again, and proceed

         20  with your testimony.

         21                 MS. GRIFFITH: Good morning, honorable

         22  Victor Robles, Chair, and members of the City

         23  Council Committee on Health.

         24                 My name is Natatia Griffith, I am the

         25  co-chair of the Political Action Committee and a
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          2  member of the Board of Directors of The New York

          3  Coalition of 100 Black Women, which is the founding

          4  chapter of the Coalition of One-Hundred Black Women

          5  Organization, which has since then grown to a

          6  national network of 72 affiliates, I would like to

          7  thank the City Council Committee on Health for the

          8  opportunity to speak in support of the enactment of

          9  bills 447 and 448 concerning automatic external

         10  defibrillators.

         11                 I come before you today representing

         12  concerned citizens and therefore supporters of these

         13  bills, not an expert.

         14                 We would also like to congratulate

         15  Speaker and Majority Leader Peter F. Vallone for

         16  having the foresight to introduce Bill 447, and to

         17  express our gratitude for the bipartisan support of

         18  both bills exhibited by our City Council members.

         19                 Automatic external defibrillators,

         20  that is a mouthful, by themselves are nothing more

         21  than a type of electronic device with the potential

         22  of doing something, but in the hands of training

         23  emergency personnel, also considered first

         24  responders or good samaritans, become powerful

         25  life-saving machines.
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          2                 And although we can discuss the pros

          3  and cons of advancement of certain technologies,

          4  this is one where there should be very little or no

          5  argument about, simple because automatic external

          6  defibrillators can help save lives.

          7                 I have often pondered, as I am

          8  certain my friend's mother and his siblings have,

          9  about what could have or should have been done and

         10  how different things might have been today if such a

         11  device was brought to his parents' home in time to

         12  prevent his father from dying of a heart attack.

         13                 It was a beautiful afternoon in

         14  October, somewhat like we experienced this past

         15  weekend, when it unexpectedly and unmercifully

         16  struck. The initial pain stopped him in his tracks,

         17  causing him to slam against a dresser drawer and

         18  hitting his head against its pointy edge. Hearing

         19  this noise, his wife rushed to the bedroom to find

         20  her husband laying partially on the floor, and

         21  although she called the EMS and a friend who was a

         22  nurse for help, all she was able to do was watch him

         23  die, an experience perhaps some of you have

         24  undergone and of course will never forget. It would

         25  be just two weeks ago when we would remember it
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          2  being one year since that day.

          3                 Now, change his name, gender and

          4  race, circumstances and place, and instead of my

          5  friend's father, yours or mine, or instead of your

          6  colleague's mother, your spouses or mates, and

          7  instead of it happening in the bedroom, the kitchen,

          8  and instead of the kitchen, the bathroom, and

          9  instead of the bathroom, the living room. The

         10  results are usually the same.

         11                 Death to that person whose window of

         12  life slams virtually shut seven minutes after

         13  suffering from a sudden cardiac arrest.

         14                 African-American's lead in falling

         15  victim to this number one killer in the United

         16  States, with Latinos following closely behind, and

         17  in New York City where it takes more than eight

         18  minutes for emergency vehicles to arrive at the

         19  scene of a medical emergency, the survival rate of

         20  sudden cardiac arrest is less than two percent. And

         21  unfortunately, despite the fact that according to a

         22  report that indicated that 77 percent of the United

         23  States largest cities now carry automatic external

         24  defibrillators in the ambulances. Statistics also

         25  indicate that over 80 percent of people who die from
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          2  heart attacks do so at home.

          3                 The New York Coalition of One-Hundred

          4  Black Women is committed to addressing issues that

          5  concern our communities.

          6                 We therefore come before you today

          7  not only to testify but to submit to you over 25

          8  pages of signatories from members of the Coalition,

          9  St. Pascale Baylon Church and other supporters. As

         10  today, we are representing the faces of many,

         11  particularly women and more specifically women who

         12  are African-American and Latino, whose death by

         13  heart attack and complications of cardiovascular

         14  disease exceeds those of cancer, HIV, accidents and

         15  homicides combined.

         16                 And what is even more startling is

         17  African-American women die of these causes at a rate

         18  that far exceeds all over races and ethnic

         19  backgrounds, the numbers speak for themselves.

         20                 According to reports, the

         21  age-adjusted death rate from cardiovascular disease

         22  is 67.2 percent higher for black females than white

         23  females. African-American women are dying from

         24  stroke-related diseases at a rate that is 71.4

         25  percent higher than our white counterparts. And
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          2  overall, as women of color, 41.5 percent of all

          3  African-American women, and 33.3 percent of Latinas,

          4  have died from cardio vascular disease since 1992.

          5                 We, too, hope that one day automatic

          6  external defibrillators will become as common as

          7  fire extinguishers, and we, the people of this great

          8  City, can lead in making this a reality.

          9                 In case you are not aware or you have

         10  not seen, there has been an increasing number of

         11  media coverage on automatic external defibrillators,

         12  as more and more cities recognize the need for these

         13  devices.

         14                 According to a recently broadcasted

         15  report, over 500 AEDs are available and over 8,000

         16  security guards have been trained in the use of

         17  these devices in Las Vegas.

         18                 The City of Pittsburgh requires its

         19  high school students to learn CPR and has

         20  incorporated the training of AEDs in its curriculum.

         21                 And in Chicago, as mentioned earlier,

         22  not only are there 33 devices throughout its O'Hare

         23  Airport, and over 2,000 of its employees have been

         24  trained in the use of these life-saving machines,

         25  Chicago's police personnel are trained in their use
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          2  and carry them in each squad car.

          3                 It is a concept that we hope our

          4  police personnel of this great city will also

          5  embrace.

          6                 And in light of the many negative

          7  images, unfortunately our police personnel have had

          8  over the years, the New York Coalition of

          9  One-Hundred Black Women believes that support by our

         10  police personnel of both bills, but most importantly

         11  Int. 447, would help improve its image among the

         12  citizens of this City, and in doing so, through

         13  effective public outreach efforts and messages

         14  foster an image that supports nothing less than

         15  being helpers and supporters, savers and protectors

         16  of all people in New York City.

         17                 This is a more humanitarian image

         18  that is dearly and desperately needed in the eyes of

         19  our youth today.

         20                 Now, yes, it might be said that the

         21  plates of our officers in blue are full. And yes,

         22  our fire personnel have to hustle harder and travel

         23  farther to cover those areas where firehouses no

         24  longer exist in our communities. But in today's

         25  world where there is an emphasis on headcount
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          2  reduction, re-engineering and bottom line targets,

          3  we are all being asked to do more with less.

          4                 All too often we distance ourselves

          5  from circumstances at hand in order to assess issues

          6  logically. But some things are simply common sense

          7  and mandating the placement of AEDs in certain

          8  places and requiring the training of individuals

          9  considered first responders are two of them.

         10                 The New York Coalition of One-Hundred

         11  Black Women has appreciated the actions taken by

         12  this City, the City Council and the many other

         13  legislators on issues and initiatives that improve

         14  our quality of living and which are intended to

         15  protect and save us from us.

         16                 As we have laws that require seat

         17  belts in cars, and planes and thrill rides to

         18  prevent injury and/or death. Airbags in vehicles to

         19  prevent head, neck and chest injuries and/or death.

         20  We have laws requiring wearing helmets when riding

         21  bicycles and motorcycles to prevent injury and/or

         22  death. Warnings on bottles, packages and other

         23  containers, denoting that they are not made for

         24  human consumption to prevent poisoning and/or death.

         25                 And we have warnings on cigarette
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          2  packages of potential health risks, and many, many

          3  other laws which are intended to reduce or prevent

          4  injuries and/or death.

          5                 Now, we know approving Int. 447 and

          6  448, but most importantly Int. 447, that they will

          7  not prevent injuries. However, they will help

          8  prevent deaths.

          9                 To quote an excerpt from an E.mail I

         10  received that was forwarded to me, titled The

         11  Paradox of These Times: There seems to be great

         12  validity that we have taller buildings but shorter

         13  tempers; wider freeways, but narrower viewpoints;

         14  more medicine but less wellness; stay up too late,

         15  get up too tired; learn to make a living, but not a

         16  life.

         17                 And unfortunately what the reality

         18  is, until we take the necessary steps to make

         19  positive change in how we live our lives, we, your

         20  constituents, will continue to need to rely on

         21  individuals such as yourselves, who collectively

         22  through this Committee and others add laws that help

         23  improve and protect us.

         24                 The New York Coalition of One-Hundred

         25  Black Women asks that we together make a positive
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          2  difference, by recognizing and confirming the

          3  validity of the testimonies presented before you

          4  today in support of the enactment of these proposed

          5  bills, as it would be a shame if the determining

          6  factors became an issue of dollars and politics.

          7  Doing so would beg the question on just how do we

          8  morally and justifiably calculate the price of one's

          9  life.

         10                 And although women who are

         11  African-American and Latina lead in deaths caused by

         12  cardiovascular disease, heart attacks do not

         13  discriminate.

         14                 Enactment of these bills, or most

         15  importantly, Int. 447, by you, our City Council

         16  members, would be in keeping of what each and every

         17  one of us should do every blessed day of our lives,

         18  whether it be at home or in the office, and that is

         19  to lead by example.

         20                 Let us do this in phases. Have these

         21  devices placed in police squads, as in Chicago, or

         22  in housing developments, and medical centers in our

         23  communities.

         24                 In addition to our paramedics, we

         25  should train our police and fire personnel, who are
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          2  our first responders to emergencies, as the precious

          3  life that an automatic external defibrillator may

          4  save, may very well be your own.

          5                 On behalf of the New York Coalition

          6  of One-Hundred Black Women, thank you for this

          7  opportunity to testify before you, the City Council

          8  Committee on Health, in support of the enactment of

          9  proposed laws Int. 447 and Int. 448.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me personally

         12  thank you. This has been testimony that truly not

         13  only brings the message home, but also makes

         14  recommendations, and I always welcome any

         15  recommendations as we move forward, and for that I

         16  want you to know that I appreciate that.

         17                 Council Member Clarke.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman. As an affiliate member of the Coalition of

         20  One-Hundred Black Women, Ms. Griffith, we know of

         21  the commitment of the Coalition and for yourself as

         22  Chair of the Committee for Political Action, I just

         23  want you to know that I hear you, because I know the

         24  organization and its commitment, and none of the

         25  questions I asked ever marginalizes the intent or
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          2  the commitment of this committee to do its work. I

          3  ask always questions about cost, I will ask

          4  questions about communities that are very different

          5  from the ones that I represent. I happen not to have

          6  a single Housing Authority development in my

          7  district, but I am mindful that I am fortunate among

          8  colleagues to represent a district and a community

          9  that has a lot of needs, yet very different than

         10  that of other colleagues, and I balance always the

         11  needs of my own, the needs of all of my colleagues

         12  in the Council. And so I know that we all who are

         13  sitting here today have taken on hard issues in this

         14  Council, have dealt with them under the leadership

         15  of the Speaker and of the Chair, and as hard as this

         16  is, I am sure that in some way or form we will

         17  address it. And, so, your testimony has given us

         18  some maps of how to implement, where to implement,

         19  when to implement and I am sure we will take it in

         20  consideration and please give my kind regards to the

         21  women whom I respect so much.

         22                 MS. GRIFFITH: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Seeing no other

         24  questions, I want to personally again thank you

         25  because I would always welcome strong and
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          2  constructive recommendations and I assure you that

          3  we will be looking at those recommendations.

          4                 Thank you so much.

          5                 MS. GRIFFITH: Thank you so much.

          6                 MR. ORENGO: Julie Lycksell, and Mike

          7  Hooper. Please come up together.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Would you

          9  identify yourself for the record, again, and then

         10  proceed.

         11                 MS. LYCKSELL: My name is Julie

         12  Lycksell. I am a sudden cardiac arrest survivor.

         13                 I am here today because I was saved

         14  by an AED. In February of 1998, I was having dinner

         15  with my husband for my birthday, I suddenly

         16  collapsed. They didn't know what happened to me, my

         17  husband tried to wake me up because he thought I was

         18  only tried. I am an operating room nurse, I am 49

         19  years old, I have two kids in college, and I have no

         20  heart disease.

         21                 It was 9:00 at night when I suddenly

         22  collapsed. They called 911. My husband started

         23  mouth-to-mouth resuscitation because my color was

         24  changing.

         25                 Within a minute, a Suffolk County
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          2  Police Officer was at the scene. He came in with a

          3  defibrillator, an oxygen tank, and a tongue

          4  depressor.

          5                 When he got there he connected me to

          6  the machine. Before he got there they called out to

          7  see if there was any doctor or a nurse in the

          8  restaurant, and there was. They helped. They put me

          9  on the floor, they started CPR and then the

         10  policeman came and it was just within a minute or

         11  two after it happened. He connected me to the

         12  machine, he defibrillated me once, nothing happened.

         13  He defibrillated me again, my heart went into normal

         14  rhythm.

         15                 At this time I was still unconscious.

         16  The ambulance came and they took me to the hospital.

         17  The hospital was only about a mile away. When I got

         18  to the hospital the doctor was wondering what

         19  happened to me. The policeman told him that I had

         20  cardiac arrest.

         21                 He said how did you know that? He

         22  said the machine told me. He said well I want to

         23  see. I want to see her electrocardiogram. When this

         24  happened, everything that happened to me was

         25  recorded in the LifePak 500 that the policeman was
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          2  carrying. After they took me to the hospital, the

          3  policeman went and had the machine downloaded at the

          4  precinct, into Stonybrook Hospital, everything was

          5  faxed to the other hospital, and when the doctors

          6  saw what happened to me, he believed it.

          7                 I was taken to St. Francis Hospital

          8  after two and a half days. I had all the tests you

          9  could find. They did a stress test, they did a

         10  cardiac catheterization, the did an x-ray of my

         11  kidneys to see if there is anything wrong with me,

         12  there was nothing wrong with me. My heart is fine, I

         13  have no damage, I didn't have -- I had sudden

         14  cardiac arrest. I didn't have a heart attack.

         15                 After four days I was in the

         16  hospital, they decided to implant an internal

         17  defibrillator. Even though there is no reason why,

         18  it is because I was documented as having sudden

         19  cardiac arrest.

         20                 On February 14th, I went home from

         21  the hospital, that was the best Valentine's Day

         22  present my husband and my two kids got that year.

         23                 I would like to emphasize what

         24  happened in Suffolk County. In July of 1997, the

         25  Suffolk County Police Department instituted a
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          2  program in which all the Suffolk County police cars

          3  were equipped with the LifePak 500. All the police

          4  officers that carry it are trained EMTs. My

          5  policeman, I call him my policeman because he is my

          6  guardian angle, James Briarton, he was only an EMT

          7  in September of '97. He saved me in February of

          8  1998.

          9                 I have been going from places to

         10  places to talk about this. I would like you to see

         11  me right now. I wouldn't be here if not for the

         12  defibrillator.

         13                 It could be your life that will be

         14  saved some day, but if only one life is saved, it is

         15  well worth it. It saved mine.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. HOOPER: Hi. My name is Mike

         20  Hooper, and I represent one of the manufacturers of

         21  the devices, Medtronic Physio-Control.

         22                 And Julie's story is not a unique

         23  one. Everyday we are hearing more and more stories

         24  about lives that are saved. But Julie had a lot of

         25  things going for her, in that there was immediate
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          2  CPR started, there were people in the restaurant

          3  that could help assist her, and there was also a

          4  police officer nearby, without the issue of trying

          5  to get through traffic and trying to get up in a

          6  high-rise building. And I want to try to make that

          7  point clear, that we are here and I have been

          8  working cities and towns all over the metropolitan

          9  area where lives are being saved on a regular basis,

         10  where survival rates are as high as 50 percent, and

         11  because they are able to get their fast. And the

         12  issue that I see here in New York City of working

         13  here many years is that it is difficult to get there

         14  fast. And a policeman can be right around the

         15  corner, it took me 20 minutes to go one block to the

         16  World Trade Center the other day in a cab, 20

         17  minutes, when I am right across the street. And that

         18  is the issue, it is not getting there, it is a

         19  matter of getting there and getting the equipment

         20  there in a timely fashion.

         21                 I have been in cardiac arrest where I

         22  have seen lives saved, I have been in cardiac arrest

         23  where I hadn't seen them saved, it is all based on

         24  time. And one of the things I wanted to mention is

         25  that in the casinos in Las Vegas there have been
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          2  studies, there is a two year study that is going to

          3  be published, and that study is going to show a

          4  survival to discharge rate of anywhere between 50

          5  and 70 percent, depending on the Casino, and their

          6  time from the time of collapse to the time of their

          7  actually getting that first defibrillation shock is

          8  an average of four minutes.

          9                 In order to get four minutes an

         10  average shock in New York City, I think the only way

         11  we can see that happen is to put it in some of these

         12  buildings. Even if they are in every car in the

         13  world, vehicle out there, it is going to be

         14  difficult to assure that everybody is going to get

         15  that four-minute time frame.

         16                 So, on behalf of Julie, who is kind

         17  enough to take some time out of work to come in

         18  today, and also on behalf of all of the

         19  manufacturers and all of the folks out there in New

         20  York City working toward this bill, we want to thank

         21  you for bringing it to this point, and certainly

         22  help, we will help assist anybody in any manner.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Council Member Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Could you just

          4  go over briefly the maintenance of the machine?

          5  Because that is an issue that people come up to me

          6  about. Tell us about the five-year lithium batteries

          7  or whatever it is.

          8                 MR. HOOPER: Yes, all of the devices

          9  have lithium batteries in them that are anywhere

         10  from five years, they are all five-year shelf-life,

         11  some are stored in the device and some aren't. But

         12  they are five years shelf life stored in the device

         13  and the machine checks itself every day. If there is

         14  a problem with the machine, it will actually beep

         15  every 20 minutes similar to a smoke detector for ten

         16  straight days, and it beeps loud, so you know there

         17  is a problem with it. So it is not like somebody has

         18  to go through a sophisticated test every day, it's

         19  checking itself, and it is also alerting you if

         20  there is a problem with it. And it is very easy to

         21  get service, especially in New York City, with our

         22  folks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you so

         24  much. Thank both of you.

         25                 MR. HOOPER: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. LYCKSELL: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, we have no

          4  other speakers, and, again, I thank you, those who

          5  didn't speak but were sitting in the audience, for

          6  coming and sitting and listening. This is an issue

          7  that we need to work towards seeing how we can

          8  implement it so that what we heard is something we

          9  don't have to hear from individuals but rather we

         10  know it to be because we have lived the experiences,

         11  and I hope it is never me going through that

         12  experience, but I think that if we can prevent it,

         13  it is worth whatever we have attempted to do.

         14                 And having said that, I am going to

         15  adjourn this hearing, but keep in mind that I intend

         16  to work with not only the sponsors, but also those

         17  who come before us to testify, particularly the

         18  professional groups so that we can see how we can

         19  move forward and even if we need to, see how we can

         20  implement a pilot so that we can get the kind of

         21  information we need before we deal with the budget,

         22  and I intend to do that.

         23                 No other business before us, then I

         24  adjourn these hearings.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 11:52 a.m.)
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